# Illinois State University

# ISU ReD: Research and eData

**Academic Senate Minutes** 

**Academic Senate** 

5-8-2024

# Senate Meeting, May 8, 2024

Academic Senate

Illinois State University

Follow this and additional works at: https://ir.library.illinoisstate.edu/senateminutes

#### **Recommended Citation**

Academic Senate, "Senate Meeting, May 8, 2024" (2024). *Academic Senate Minutes*. 1322. https://ir.library.illinoisstate.edu/senateminutes/1322

This Article is brought to you for free and open access by the Academic Senate at ISU ReD: Research and eData. It has been accepted for inclusion in Academic Senate Minutes by an authorized administrator of ISU ReD: Research and eData. For more information, please contact ISUReD@ilstu.edu.

# Academic Senate Meeting Agenda Wednesday, May 8, 2024 7:00 P.M. OLD MAIN ROOM, BONE STUDENT CENTER (unapproved)

Please note: These minutes are abbreviated due to technical difficulties with the recording equipment at the meeting.

Student Body President Cobi Blair called the meeting to order.

Student Body President Cobi Blair called the roll and declared a quorum.

Election of Academic Senate Chairperson Martha Horst, MUS, WKCFA

Martha Horst was elected Chairperson unanimously.

Election of Academic Senate Secretary
Lea Cline, ART, WKCFA

Lea Cline was elected Secretary unanimously.

Election of Executive Committee Faculty Members
Dimitrios Nikolaou, ECO, CAS
Angela Bonnell, MIL
Nathan Kapoor, HIS, CAS
Kevin Edwards, SBS, CAS

The Executive Committee slate was approved unanimously.

Public Comment: All speakers must sign in with the Senate Secretary prior to the start of the meeting.

Sascha Palmer - comments unavailable.

Caleb Wiessing - We, as students, as the Students for Justice in Palestine, as active and educated members of this community, of YOUR community, have been, and currently are well within our right to protest. Since last Wednesday morning, we have been denied the right to have tents and shelter. With the rain and wind this week, it is unreasonable to believe that we are doing this safely. We, as protestors, have the right to safety. Sending cops to patrol us does not make us feel safe. We have faced verbal abuse from counter-protestors constantly throughout the past week. People have been hurling slurs and harassing us, including people with no affiliation to the university. ISU has done so little to provide us any semblance of protection. If you can send people in vests at 7 am to tell us to take down our shelter or otherwise face suspension and arrest, you can provide protection from conflict — something you have provided consistently for counter-protests against us. Let me be clear, though, we do not want cops. Police officers peering

at us from a distance in the dark does not make us feel safe. Your consistent surveillance, yet deliberate lack of action and protection for us, does not make us feel safe. Making a peaceful protestor effectively homeless through suspension does not make us feel safe. We have made a large effort to be peaceful, yet we are met with silence and willful ignorance from the university. We want a platform with the president, not just vague statements dismissing attempts at a real conversation. You have not fully disclosed your investments for the companies that fund Israel's War Machine. You have not divested in these companies. Yet, you have also not made a statement of solidarity with the Palestinian students at our university. You have not called for a cease fire. You have done the bare minimum, legally required by our Freedom of Information Act. We see your ignorance and apathy, and it will not be forgotten."

Evie Farwell – comments unavailable.

#### Presentation:

Lane Crothers: IBHE-FAC report

Items discussed:

- --structure, nature, and responsibilities of FAC as part of the IBHE
- --a report of a member's trip with students to Springfield after meeting with Dave Koehler, Senate sponsor of an ISU SGA proposal to add mental health days to the academic calendar of public universities
- --the status of the Equitable Funding initiative that has been sent to the legislature after several years' work
- --the results of a brief survey of FAC colleagues about student activism on campuses across Illinois.

#### Approval of the Academic Senate minutes of 03-27-2024 and 04-10-2024

Motion by Senator McHale, second by Senator Pancrazio. The minutes were approved unanimously.

#### Chairperson's Remarks

Thank you, all, for your support this evening. I have really enjoyed working for the Academic Senate as your chair, and I look forward to continuing that work during this next academic year.

Congrats to Senators Cline, Nikolaou, Bonnell, Kapoor, and Edwards for their successful elections to the Executive Committee and Faculty Caucus Executive Committee this evening. I also want to congratulate our newly elected SGA members of Exec – Senators Bever, Montoya, and Sharp. Also, I wish to welcome our newest senators to this evening's meeting – Senators Woolever, Gaucin, Susami, Agoranos, Sharp, and Khurshid; congratulations on your recent appointments to the Academic Senate and welcome!

As I said at the recent Academic Senate orientation, the main function of our body is to pass policy language. The ISU constitution states that the Senate shall recommend policy:

- 1. for the admission of students to the University.
- 2. for degree requirements.
- 3. for the annual calendar of the University.
- 4. for the adoption and standards of educational and academic conduct common to all elements of the University community.
- 5. for intercollegiate programs and activities.
- 6. with respect to student life and conduct.
- 7. for the evaluation of faculty members, including academic administrators, in connection with their appointment, promotion, remuneration, and retention.
- 8. to ensure the protection of the rights and privileges of the various elements of the academic community and establish procedures for the hearing of grievances.
- 9. (and) in the formulation of policies governing the terms under which individuals and groups can use University facilities for out-of-class activities.

This last category is relevant to our current campus climate. Policy 6.1.1 (University Facility and Space Use), which was passed by the Academic Senate on November 20, 2019, creates content-neutral time, place, and manner restrictions for the use of university space. The events of the past week have demonstrated the strength of this policy.

As we work on policies for the upcoming year, I encourage you to keep in mind the potential impact of our work. Policies that this Academic Senate works on will shape actions of university community members in the future. This is very important work, and Illinois State University tradition of shared governance gives students, faculty, and staff a significant say in our university policies.

This evening, we are going to have an information session and potentially an action item session on an item left over from the 2023-2024 Academic Senate. Senator Lucey will review for us the work done by the Faculty Affairs Committee on policy 4.1.11 Export Control. This was ready as an Action item, but then Senator Lucey received some further input from the Office of General Counsel, and we also ran out of time at our last meeting. He has compiled a memo of suggestions. If, after he presents this material, the Senate thinks it is ready, we can take a vote to move this item to Action and then take another vote on the proposed changes to this policy this evening.

Also this evening, we had an IBHE-FAC report from Lane Crothers of Politics and Government. I want to thank Professor Crothers for his service as Illinois State University's IBHE-FAC representative for something like the past 20 years or so. There is nobody in this room who knows more about how much time and effort he has put into this position. He has driven countless times to Chicago through difficult traffic and spent many weekends writing detailed reports for the Senate on what was discussed at the IBHE-FAC's day long meetings. The

conversations and initiatives of this group are very important, and we have been lucky to have such a strong representative from Illinois State University for the past few years.

As you may know, there is a Board of Trustees meeting scheduled for this Friday. The Academic Senate and its Rules Committee worked throughout the fall semester to approve proposed amendments to the ISU constitution that would create representation for the newly formed College of Engineering and more balanced representation on the Campus Communication Committee. There was a mix up in the President's office, so, regrettably, the presentation of this proposed amendment will be delayed. President Tarhule assures me that the Board of Trustees will review this item at their July meeting. FYI - we also have 19 policies and 6 additional items waiting the Office of General Counsel's review and Presidential signature. Some, such as the Final Examinations policy 4.1.5, were submitted in February.

Senators, if you haven't already, please fill out your internal committee preference Qualtrics survey. SGA and the Faculty Caucus Executive Committee will be meeting separately over the summer to assign senators to these internal committees. If we don't receive a survey response from you, we will just have to guess what your preferences are.

# Student Body President's Remarks

Senator Blair: Good evening,

For those who do not yet know me well, my name is Cobi Blair. I am a senior accounting student excited to become a graduate student in accounting next fall. It is my honor to serve as the Student Body President and Vice Chairperson of this body, and I pledge to uphold this office with the diligence and care it is due.

We have a long and proud history of shared governance at ISU, and I am excited to take part in it. Over the next year, I look forward to helping Student Government continue to affirm itself as a responsible and engaged campus partner to the university and as a worthy representative and advocate for the students we serve.

To accomplish this, I have met with or scheduled meetings with President Tarhule, each of his cabinet members, and several other members of the administration. I hope to build on these relationships to better serve our students and our university community.

On May 1st, the Association held its inaugural meeting where we appointed twenty students to vacant positions in the assembly, six of which are serving in this body. I'd like to congratulate them on their new positions, and I am confident that they will prove themselves to be as competent, thoughtful, and committed to service as I know them to be. I'd also like to congratulate Senator Bever, Senator Montoya, and Senator Sharp for being elected as our Assembly Officers. They will join me on the Executive Committee of this body. Additionally, SGA passed a resolution reaffirming the human right of all students to peaceably demonstrate within the bounds of the law. The resolution urges the university to continue to respect these rights and to continue to uphold the values of civic engagement held by our campus community.

May is Mental Health Awareness Month. As such, you may see some of us wearing green ribbon pins to show our support and advocacy for everyone who struggles with mental health. If you would like a pin, please speak with Senator Bever after the meeting.

Congratulations again to Chairperson Horst on being elected, I am sure we will work very well together. I look forward to a great year, and to the work that this body and Student Government can accomplish.

#### Administrators' Remarks

#### • President Aondover Tarhule

President Tarhule briefly congratulated the new senators and elected officers. He mentioned administrative searches, such as the Director of Athletics, that will, most likely, occur in the fall.

#### • Provost Ani Yazedjian

Provost Yazedjian welcomed the new senators and announced her intention to run panel of ten searches starting in the fall for the next individuals to lead the graduate school and serve as Associate Provost.

- Vice President for Student Affairs Levester Johnson excused
- Interim Vice President for Finance and Planning Dan Petree Interim VP Petree briefly welcomed the new senators.

### Information/Action Item:

Policy 4.1.11 Export Control
Policy 4.1.11 Export Control (Current Copy)
05.01.2024.02 Policy 4.1.11 Export Control (Memo)
05.02.24.03 Policy 4.1.11 Export Control (Mark Up Copy)
05.02.24.01 4.1.11 Export Control (clean copy)

Motion to move 4.1.11 to action by Senator McHale Second by Senator Peters

Motion to approve by Senator Pellegrini Second by Senator Blum The motion passed unanimously

# Information/Action Item:

Academic Senate Calendar 2024-2025

<u>Senate + Exec Calendar 2024-2025</u> <u>Academic Senate Calendar 24-25</u> Executive Calendar 24-25

Motion to approve by Senator Pancrazio Second by Senator Hofstetter

The motion passed unanimously

# Advisory Items:

Approval of the Academic Plan (Assistant Vice President Cooper Cutting) (Scan only, do not print) Academic Plan 2024-2029 Senate DRAFT 5-2-24

Motion to approve by Senator McHale Second by Senator Blum The motion passed unanimously.

2.1.2 Eligibility for Student Health Service Benefits (Executive Director of Well-Being and Recreation Dawn Pote and Director of Student Health Services Administration Becky Ludolph)

<u>Cover sheet for 2.1.2 Eligibility for Student Health Services Benefits policy change</u> <u>submissions</u>

<u>Proposed changes to Policy 2.1.2 Eligibility for Student Health Service Benefits 2023-10-</u>

This item is a non-senate advisory policy. Dawn Pote reviewed recent changes made to this policy with the Senate.

#### Communications:

5/8/24 Student Affairs Messaging for Academic Senate:

- Esports MVC Conference Championship Congrats to Redbird Esports for successfully hosting the inaugural MVC Esports Conference Championship on April 20th and winning all three events held at the conference tournament!
- This past weekend, Redbird Esports competed in the NECC (National Esports Collegiate Conference) and CECC (Collegiate Esports Commissioners Cup):
- o Redbird Super Smash Bros (club) lost in the first round of the CECC tournament on Saturday. Smash is a club for us, so poor placement was expected since the other schools who had a team with all scholarship players. We were lucky enough to have our club team beat Missouri State University in the MVC LAN we held which secured them a spot in the CECC Finals!
- o Redbird Esports Overwatch came in as underdogs to beat collegiate esports powerhouses Maryville, Fisher College, and Northwood to win the NECC (National Esports Collegiate Conference) Legends Divisions Finals. The Legends Division is a 16 team, invite only league that was reserved for the top 16 teams, regardless of athletic division in the United States.

- o Redbird Esports Overwatch came in as underdogs to beat collegiate esports powerhouses Maryville, Fisher College, and Northwood to win the CECC (Collegiate Esports Commissioners Cup) 3-0, solidifying Illinois State as the best collegiate Overwatch Team in the country!
- o Redbird Esports Overwatch have now won 3 of the top 4 collegiate overwatch competitions (NACE, NECC, CECC). We compete in the Activision Blizzard Collegiate Overwatch Championships (publisher tournament) finals starting May 9th May 19th.

# Adjournment

Motion to adjourn by Senator McHale

Second by Senator Bevers